
1 
 

 
Agenda 

Select Board Meeting 
Town of Damariscotta, Maine 

January 4, 2023 
5:30 PM

Join Zoom Meeting:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87878201039  
Meeting ID: 878 7820 1039 Passcode: Dama22 

 
I. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
II. Call Select Board Meeting to Order 

 
III. Minutes  

1. December 21, 2022 Select Board Minutes 
  

IV. Financial Reports  
1. Payroll Warrants #  
2. Accounts Payable Warrants #  

 
V. Citizen Comments and General Correspondence 

1. CLC Adult and Community Education 
 

VI. Town Manager Items  
1. Capital Project Updates  
   

VII. Official Action Items  
1. FHA Grant Authorization 
2. Butter Up Cakes 
3. Set Public Hearing Date – Above & Beyond Cannabis LLC 

 
VIII. Select Board’s Discussion Items 

1. Proposed TIF Amendment 
 

IX. Adjournment 
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87878201039


1 
 

 
Agenda 

Select Board Meeting 
Town of Damariscotta, Maine 

January 4, 2023 
5:30 PM

Join Zoom Meeting:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87878201039  
Meeting ID: 878 7820 1039 Passcode: Dama22 

 
I. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
II. Call Select Board Meeting to Order 

 
III. Minutes  

1. December 21, 2022 Select Board Minutes  
  

IV. Financial Reports  
1. Payroll Warrants #  
2. Accounts Payable Warrants #  

 
V. Citizen Comments and General Correspondence 

1. CLC Adult and Community Education – see the included letter, which we received 
last week.   

 
VI. Town Manager Items  

1. Capital Project Updates  
i. Egypt/Belvedere Rd – work has begun on Egypt Rd.  The contractor has been 

replacing culverts.  Two culverts that were identified to be cleared and stabilized 
have been extended while another will have to be replaced.  The culvert to be 
replaced is just south of Woods Lane and will require that we make contact with the 
adjacent property owner to correct their drainage system as it appears a discontinued 
culvert will only cause our outfall to pool water.   

ii. Miles Street – final review of the original bid scope are being reviewed by the 
contractor and engineer.  I expect the document to be ready any day to which the 
board can then vote to award the contract.  Current estimates are between $100,000-
$110,000 to bring the project all the way to Bristol Rd.  We will continue to work 
with the partners involved to find an opportunity to consider this work so we do not 
have to go back to complete at a later date.  

iii. Hodgdon Street – Our engineer reached out and received no response from one of the 
property owners looking to confirm the final design.  We are moving forward with 
the assumption that the requested changes are final and plan to have this project out 
to bid in February.    

iv. Church St – There has not been a lot of effort towards this project as of late while we 
focus on the previously mentioned projects.  The engineers have provided us with an 
estimate of the construction costs for grant purposes and Andrew H can explain in 
more detail at the meeting.   

   
VII. Official Action Items  

1. FHA Grant Authorization – see the included memo.   

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87878201039


2 
 

Recommended Motion: Authorize the town to be included in the federal grant 
opportunity presented to us by Maine Dept of Marine Resources staff.    
(Motion___________ / Second _____________)     Vote _____ /______ / _______ 
 

2. Butter Up Cakes – The business has submitted a liquor license renewal.  Upon review 
of the application, there are two items they’ll need to clarify, which we expect will be 
available before the meeting.   
 
Recommended Motion: Approve the renewal of the liquor license for Butter Up 
Cakes. 
(Motion___________ / Second _____________)     Vote _____ /______ / _______ 
 

3. Set Public Hearing Date – Above & Beyond Cannabis LLC has met and been 
approved through the Site Plan Review process.  Their next step is to submit an 
application, which they have, and are now requiring a public hearing, per the 
ordinance.  
 
Recommended Motion: To call for a public hearing at 5:30 PM on January 18, 2023 
to consider an application submitted by Above & Beyond Cannabis LLC’s 
application for a Medical Marijuana Business to be located at 95 Biscay Rd. 
(Motion___________ / Second _____________)     Vote _____ /______ / _______ 
 
 

VIII. Select Board’s Discussion Items 
1. Proposed TIF Amendment – Included in the packet you will find a memo with our 

recommendation to consider expanding the footprint of the TIF district.  In addition to 
that, I have included a copy of the current TIF plan for your review and there will be 
a short presentation at the meeting from staff at Midcoast Council of Government to 
provide an overview of TIFs.  We are looking for direction from the board to pursue 
the recommended changes.    

 
IX. Adjournment 

 
 



Town of Damariscotta                                                                                 Andrew Dorr 
21 School Street                                                                                                     Town Manager                                  
Damariscotta, Maine  04543 
(P) 207-563-5168 (F) 207-563-6862 

 
            
  

 

Memo  
 
To:  Damariscotta Select Board 
From:  Andrew Dorr  
Date:  December 30, 2022 
Re:  FHA/MDMR Culvert Removal, Replacement, and Restoration Grant 
 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Maine Department of Marine Resources (MDMR), Bureau of Sea-run Fisheries and 
Habitat is hoping to apply for grant funding from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) 
National Culvert Removal, Replacement, and Restoration Grant Program from the 
Federal Highway Administration. This program funds culvert projects that improve or 
restore passage of anadromous fish species (fish that are born in fresh water and spend 
most of their lives in the marine environment [i.e., Atlantic salmon, alewives, rainbow 
smelt, etc.]) through the replacement, repair, or removal of culverts and weirs. This is a 
fantastic opportunity to reconnect native Maine fish to historic spawning habitats and to 
replace aging or severely undersized infrastructure that may pose problems (i.e., structure 
failure, flood risk, road closure) in the future.  MDMR is hoping to complete a single 
proposal that includes crossings in several towns, however towns are eligible to apply on 
their own.  This combined package of crossings may be a more competitive proposal and 
will take some of the burden of applying off of Towns.  The grant program will allow the 
crossings to be designed and implemented over, at most, a 4-year timeframe.   
  
MDMR has selected the Church St. culvert in the town of Damariscotta (Maine Stream 
Habitat Viewer #14145) as a potential project to include in our grant proposal if the town 
is interested and other criteria can be met. This culvert is undersized for the stream, and 
its replacement would allow rainbow smelt and other anadromous species to access 
important upstream habitat. The estimated cost for this project is $981,0001, including 
design and construction costs. While the majority (80%; $784,000) will be covered by 
grant funds, 20% ($197,000) is needed as non-federal match and would need to be 
provided by the town or another non-federal source. DMR is already searching for 
alternative forms of non-federal funding, but please let us know if the town is interested 
and if the town has any ability to provide any additional funding. With enough funding 
and approval from the town, DMR could include this project in our broader application 
for BIL funding.   
  

 
1 See Gartley and Dorsky estimates for the culvert replacement.   

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwebapps2.cgis-solutions.com%2FMaineStreamViewer%2F&data=05%7C01%7CLars.Hammer%40maine.gov%7C2ce7838dd93f46e7c25f08dad941b48e%7C413fa8ab207d4b629bcdea1a8f2f864e%7C0%7C0%7C638061173507955650%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=t4uy2GmoSPKWdjQwqyoqrcUZCeEh5IeMlNQzGOcUqpI%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwebapps2.cgis-solutions.com%2FMaineStreamViewer%2F&data=05%7C01%7CLars.Hammer%40maine.gov%7C2ce7838dd93f46e7c25f08dad941b48e%7C413fa8ab207d4b629bcdea1a8f2f864e%7C0%7C0%7C638061173507955650%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=t4uy2GmoSPKWdjQwqyoqrcUZCeEh5IeMlNQzGOcUqpI%3D&reserved=0


2 | P a g e  
 

As with most grant programs, this opportunity has a fast-approaching deadline of 
February 6th, 2023.  In order to complete the application, DMR will need to have some 
commitment from your town by January 13th, 2023.  
 
Manager’s Notes:  
There is a variance between the engineer’s projected project costs and the DMR’s 
estimated cost.  Below is a summary of the estimated project funding sources, including 
this grant proposal.  The total construction estimate assumes the higher of the two costs 
presented.  
 
Donations  
$75,000 Engineering/Design (not included in the deficit calculation) 
$234,000 Sidewalk Construction (School St to US 1B/Biscay) 
 
Bond Proceeds 
$750,000 Estimated Remaining Bond Funds 
 
Possible Grant Funds 
$784,000 80% Federal Grant Funds 
 
Total Project Funds (Est):  $ 1,843,000 
Total Construction Estimate:  $ 2,009,000 
 
This will leave us with a deficit of $ 241,000 to which we will look to utilize reserve fund 
monies, bond money, grant money, partnerships, donations, or taxation.  As we continue 
to build the financial resources needed to complete the project, I feel we should certainly 
take advantage of this opportunity to be included in the MDMR’s application to FHA for 
the culvert replacement.   
 
Recommended Motion: Authorize the town to be included in the federal grant 
opportunity presented to us by Maine Dept of Marine Resources staff.    
  



3 | P a g e  
 

Gartley & Dorsky 
Engineering & Surveying 

 
December 16, 2022 

Project # 2021-0021 
RE:  Town of Damariscotta – Church Street 

Estimated Cost for Church Street Improvements 
 
Castner Brook Crossing 
 
The existing culvert carrying Castner Brook under Church Street is in need of 
replacement. This cost estimate does not include the sidewalk for this section of Church 
Street. The cost estimate below was provided by Acadia Civil Works Plan ‘B’ 
construction cost estimate for the culver crossing. This option reduces costs by proposing 
a 70-foot-long box culvert instead of the 7-foot-tall headwalls in Plan ‘A’. Below is an 
estimated cost for constructing these improvements: 

 
Site Preparation, Excavation & Traffic Control   $   21,500.00 
Site Work (Backfill, Underdrain & Grading)   $   55,425.00 
Asphalt & Guardrail (Road Surfacing & Bridge Rail)  $   28,375.00 
Riprap, Dewatering, Erosion Control, Loam & Seed  $ 126,250.00 
Box Culvert & Headwall (Crane Installation)   $ 284,400.00 
Sewer Line        $   42,500.00 
Pavement Removal       $     8,050.00 
Total Estimated Construction Cost     $ 566,500.00 

Mobilization (±2%)      $   10,000.00 
Contingency (±20%)      $ 115,500.00 
Castner Brook Estimated Construction Cost   $ 692,000.00 

 
Total Project 

Sidewalk Estimated Construction Cost   $    750,000.00 
Box Cut Estimated Construction Cost   $    278,000.00 
Castner Brook Estimated Construction Cost   $    692,000.00 
Total Estimated Construction Cost    $ 1,720,000.00 

 
We have included a 20% contingency to accommodate for unexpected complications in 
each cost estimate. These estimates are for planning purposes only. This probable 
construction cost letter is based on our best judgment as experienced and qualified 
professionals familiar with the construction industry. However, because we cannot 
control the cost of the labor, material, equipment, or services furnished, we cannot 
guarantee the actual construction cost will not vary from our estimate. 
 
 
 



































TO:  Selectboard 
FROM: Andrew Dorr, Town Manager 
  Isabelle Oechslie, Town Planner 
RE:  Discussion of Possible TIF Amendments 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 
During a Special Town Meeting on February 19, 2020, voters approved the designation of a Main Street 
Tax Increment Financing District and associated Development Program. The adopted TIF captured 100% 
of the increased value over the 30-year life of the TIF (which would end in FY2049) and sheltered those 
funds to be used for identified Town priorities. Specifically, the sheltered revenue was to be spent on 
costs associated with the construction of infrastructure improvements (sidewalks, curbing, street and 
pedestrian lights, and bike trails) within the TIF district and along upper Main Street. Additionally, the 
Development Program put aside 10% of the cost of a new Pumper Truck for the Fire Department. 
 
The TIF District currently comprises 33.31 acres of land adjacent to Main Street and is made up of two 
parcels of land (identified on the Assessor’s records as Tax Map 10 Lot 22 (now merged with Tax Map 1 
Lot 53), Tax Map 1 Lot 53, and Tax Map 1 Lot 56-1). 

 
Existing TIF District 

 
The Original Assessed Value of the TIF District was shown on the Assessor’s Certificate as $818,000 (as 
of March 31, 2019). During the operational period of the TIF, it was projected that the TIF would 
generate $1,135,050 in revenue for the Town. By FY2023 (the fourth year of the TIF), it was projected 
that the TIF would have an assessed valuation of $3,318,000 and would have already generated $88,550 
in cumulative revenue (or $40,250 in revenue for FY2023 alone). However, the revenue generated for the 
TIF by payment of FY2023 tax bills will only be $12,062.93 (see breakdown below). 



Fiscal Year 
Assessed Value TOTAL 

Assessed 
Value 

Captured 
Assessed 
Value 
(Actual 
Assessed 
Value 
minus 
OAV) 

Tax Rate Revenue to 
TIF 

Projected 
Assessed 
Value 

Difference 
in Projected 
Assessed 
Value 

Projected 
TIF 
Revenue 

Difference in 
Projected 
TIF 
Revenue 

Map 10, 
Lot 22 

Map 1, 
Lot 53 

Map 1, Lot 
56-1 

FY2019 
(OAV) $173,300 $405,000 $228,000 $806,300 - - - $818,000 -$11,700   

FY2020 $173,300 $405,000 $228,000 $806,300 -$11,700 $16.10 $0.00 $818,000 -$11,700 - - 

FY2021 $173,300 $405,000 $964,200 $1,542,500 $724,500 $16.00 $11,592.00 $1,818,000 -$275,500 $16,100 -$4,508.00 

FY2022 $173,300 $405,000 $964,200 $1,542,500 $724,500 $15.90 $11,519.55 $2,818,000 -$1,275,500 $32,200 -$20,680.45 

FY2023 $173,300 $405,000 $964,200 $1,542,500 $724,500 $16.65 $12,062.93 $3,318,000 -$1,775,500 $40,250 -$28,187.08 

 
It should be noted that, thus far, only one building within the existing TIF District has been built out (the 
2,700 s.f. bank shown on the approved site plan for Tax Map 1, Lot 56-1, shown below). 

  
The remaining retail spaces on Tax Map 1, Lot 56-1 are being marketed as “build-to-suit” retail spaces, 
meaning that the developer is waiting for clients to sign on to the spaces before spending money on 
building them out.  



 
Proposed Amendments 

● Amend District Boundary: The expansion of sidewalks and trails in Damariscotta in order to 
create a more interconnected pedestrian network has been identified as a community priority. 
With increased development occurring in the area between Main Street and School Street, staff 
has been exploring the idea of amending the TIF District to capture the increased value of these 
parcels over the next 27 years and direct those funds towards the originally identified capital 
projects in areas within and adjacent to the TIF District (and potentially additional capital projects 
as noted below). 
 
As this Board is likely aware, the Planning Board is currently reviewing a development proposal 
for a 102 bed nursing facility on Piper Mill Road (Tax Map 1, Lot 50). This project will be fully 
taxable and would be expected to generate approximately $240,000 of property tax revenue 
annually. Staff recommends the inclusion of this parcel, as well as other parcels that may be 
suitable for future development (see map below), in this TIF district. 

 
 

The State requires that no more than 2% of a municipality’s total acreage is within one TIF 
district. The existing TIF District boundary (in orange above) captures 0.35% of the total acreage 
within Damariscotta. If the above recommended additions were to be adopted (in blue above), the 
TIF district would capture 0.85% of the total acreage within Damariscotta. 
 

● Amend Development Program Project List: The initial Development Program allowed for the 
addition of sidewalks and related pedestrian infrastructure described above along Main Street 
only. Staff recommends amending the Development Program to allow funds to be used for 
pedestrian improvements along School Street and High Street as well. Though High Street and 
the westerly side of School Street are not proposed to be included in the TIF District boundaries, 



there is a recognition that increased development along the eastern side of School Street and 
along upper Main Street could have an impact on these properties streets (specifically, in that 
pedestrians attempting to get to the newly developed parcels may wish to walk High Street and 
School Street). This amendment would also satisfy priorities identified by the community in the 
2015 Newcastle-Damariscotta Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan1 to create a Bristol Road - High Street 
- School Street sidewalk loop, and would bring in additional revenue to accomplish the Main 
Street/Route 1B sidewalk extension towards the Great Salt Bay School. 
 
In addition, the existing TIF District does not allow for Credit Enhancement Agreements (CEAs). 
A CEA is a financial mechanism that may be used within a TIF district to compensate a 
developer or business either fully or partially for approved development project costs using TIF 
funds. CEAs are used as a business attraction tool (a way to bring business to a community 
specifically). The CEA is a contract between the municipality and developer or business to assist 
the development project by using some or all the incremental tax revenues generated by the new 
investment to pay certain authorized project costs with payments made directly to the developer 
or business. While staff is recommending allowing for Credit Enhancement Agreements within 
the TIF Development Program, this does not mean that every project within the TIF District will 
automatically be given a CEA. CEAs still need to be negotiated, voted on by the Town, and 
approved by the State’s Department of Economic and Community Development. CEAs are 
typically reserved for businesses that will be creating or retaining a significant number of jobs in 
the community or that will be improving a blighted area by their investment. 
 

Recommendation 
Town staff is requesting that the Selectboard review the above recommendations during their meeting on 
January 4th and provide staff with guidance on whether or not to pursue the amendments as presented. If 
staff is given guidance to proceed, we will engage with the Town’s legal counsel to draft amendments to 
the TIF district, work to schedule a public hearing and Special Town Meeting thereon, with an anticipated 
submission date to DECD in the Spring of 2023. We have invited Mathew Eddy from Midcoast Council 
of Governments to attend this meeting, and the three of us will be available to answer any questions that 
you may have. 

 
1 Available on the Town’s website at this link: 
https://www.damariscottame.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif4311/f/uploads/2015_newcastle-dama_bicycle-
pedestrian_plan.pdf 










































































	01-04-2023_Agenda
	01-04-2023_Expanded Agenda
	FHA_MDMR Grant Memo
	Butter Up Cakes Liquor License Renewal w PD report
	TIF Amendment Memo
	Final Submisson

